BRADLEY LAKE PROJECT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING
REGULAR MEETING
Alaska Energy Authority, Anchorage, Alaska
January 29, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Borgeson called the regular meeting of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project
Management Committee to order at 9:33 a.m.

2. ROLL CALL (for Committee members)

Cory Borgeson (Golden Valley Electric Association [GVEA]); Sara Fisher-Goad (Alaska Energy
Authority [AEA]); Lee Thibert (Chugach Electric Association [CEA]); Tony Izzo (Matanuska
Electric Association [MEA]); Mark Johnston (Anchorage Municipal Light & Power [MLP]); John
Foutz (City of Seward (phone)); and Harvey Ambrose (Homer Electric Association [HEA]).

3. PUBLIC ROLL CALL (for all others present)

Jocelyn Garner, Kirk Warren, Teri Webster (AEA); Dave Gillespie (ARCTEC); Brian Bjorkquist
(Attorney General's Office [AGQ]); Brian Hickey, Burke Wick (CEA); Allen Gray, Ron Woolf
(GVEA); Bob Day, Emily Hutchinson, Alan Owens (HEA); Kirk Gibson (McDowell Rackner &
Gibson); Gary Kuhn, David Pease (MEA); Mollie Morrison, Jeff Warner (MLP); Stan Hayes
(MWH); Bernie Smith (Public); Gary Dixon (Swalling & Associates); and Sydney Hamilton
(Accu-Type Depositions).

4. AGENDA COMMENTS/ MOTION FOR APPROVAL

MOTION: Mr. Thibert made a motion to add Item 7C. Capital Programs to the agenda.
Motion seconded by Mr. Johnston.

The motion passed to amend the agenda.

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

6. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES - November 17, 2015

Mr. Ambrose made a correction to Item 10 of the November 17, 2015 minutes where it states
Mr. Harvey and should read Mr. Ambrose.

MOTION: Mr. Thibert made a motion to approve prior meeting minutes of November 17,
2015, as corrected. Motion seconded by Mr. Johnston.

The motion passed unanimously to approve the prior meeting minutes of November 17,
2015, as corrected.

7. OLD BUSINESS

A. Dynamic Scheduling

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 1 of 6



Mr. Wick informed a brief memo was provided to members in their packet. Dynamic scheduling
has been implemented with ML&P since December. The intent is to bring on one utility a
month, with GVEA being next in line.

Chair Borgeson expressed his appreciation for the efforts by CEA and ML&P. This is important
because of the new standard for avoided cost. Mr. Wick noted most of the effort is from the
SCADA representatives of the utilities working very closely together. This is not a simple
process.

B. Fish Screen Cleaning

Mr. Wick reported a chart was emailed to the members showing the draw-down of the lake
water is on track with the timing of the project, with a minimal financial impact on lost water to
the utilities.

Mr. Owens directed the members to the Bradley Lake Fish Water Screen Debris Report
included in their packet. He noted additional pictures of debris are contained within the report.
The request for proposals (RFP) resulted in four written proposals. GMC Contracting has been
awarded the bid. The projected mobilization date is April 5th. The expected finish date is May
5th, but could be extended to June 5th, if necessary. The estimated labor and equipment cost
for a May 5th finish date is $241,000. If the project is extended, the additional cost of standby
equipment rates will apply. The standby rates are 25% of normal rates, which would add
approximately $50,000. Landing craft, fuel deliveries, and fabrication of a backup screen are
examples of additional costs of the project. The total project cost is anticipated at $450,000 to
$500,000.

Mr. Day informed the O&D Committee is committed to this project and passed a resolution that
included the lake level should be at 1,070 elevation as of April 15th. Mr. Day is pleased with the
status of the project and noted initial cost estimates were above one million dollars.

Mr. Owens gave a description of the process for removing the debris from the fish screens.

Mr. Thibert asked for the project's biggest risk. Mr. Owens stated the biggest risk is the
participants not being able to drain the lake, which leads to postponing the project and not
meeting fish water flow requirements.

C. Capital Project

Mr. Thibert explained the SVC replacement project is approximately $7.2 million. He believes
recovering this cost through the R&C Fund would impact rates greater than through financing.
Mr. Thibert requested reconsideration of longer-term financing based on the May report from
AEA regarding the financial considerations related to the replacement of the SVC.

Chair Borgeson agreed it is a good idea to reconsider longer-term financing. Chair Borgeson
gave an assignment to the Budget Committee to review options and report back at the next
meeting. There were no objections from members.

Mr. Ambrose noted HEA would not support financing that involves an extension of the bonds for
the Bradley Project but would be agreeable to an interim fund that is complete before the other
matures.

8. NEW BUSINESS

A. FY15 Financial Report

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 2 of 6



Chair Borgeson requested Mr. Dixon provide the FY15 Financial Report. Mr. Dixon explained
the annual financial audit of the operating and revenue funds has been completed. Included in
the member packets are the Auditor's Report and the Financial Statements. Mr. Dixon informed
the audits include the review of bond indenture requirements and Committee requirements. No
adjustments to any of the numbers in the AEA statements were requested. No difficulties were
encountered in working with the AEA accountants and there were no exception findings. Mr.
Dixon reviewed specific line items of the report.

Mr. Thibert asked when and if there is an appropriate time to disclose the 2013-06 Change of
Project Operator in a report. Mr. Dixon noted this is a discretionary item and would be
appropriate to include in the next report to comply with the two-year notice. Mr. Thibert
corrected the report to read static var compensation rather than static variance compensation.

Chair Borgeson commented on the positive financial performance and noted most budgeted
items came in below their budgeted amounts. He expressed his appreciation for the work in
staying under budget. Chair Borgeson asked if there were any significant changes in the cost of
project operation from year-to-year. Mr. Dixon noted the focus of this report is to validate the
actual costs to the budgeted costs and not a year-to-year comparison.

Mr. Johnston asked if it would make more sense to transfer the remaining balance refund due to
the utilities to the R&C Fund to help fund the SVC project, rather than the utilities receiving a
refund and then providing a contribution to the R&C Fund. Ms. Garner indicated after the
motion is approved today, refunds will go out to the utilities next week. She informed the bond
indenture provision would also have to be reviewed to ensure a transfer of funds would be in
compliance. Mr. Gibson commented each utility accounts for power adjustments and SVC
costs differently. Mr. Day informed this suggestion was reviewed previously and there were
internal accounting issues for individual utilities regarding the separation of the operating funds
and R&C funds. Chair Borgeson requested the Budget Committee review this suggestion for
next year and see if the accounting issues can be resolved.

MOTION: Mr. Ambrose made a motion to adopt the written motion in the packet
associated with Item 8A. Motion seconded by Mr. Thibert.

The motion passed unanimously.
Chair Borgeson expressed his appreciation to Mr. Dixon and Ms. Garner for their efforts.
B. Bradley Management Audit Report

Chair Borgeson requested Mr. Hayes provide the Audit Report led by MWH. Mr. Hayes
expressed his appreciation to AEA and the Committee for the opportunity to perform the audit
and provide opinions. Mr. Hayes explained the scope of the audit, to include a condition
assessment, review of agreements, staffing, O&M overview and budgets, capital projects and
costs, and license compliance. Mr. Hayes provided an overview of the findings and
recommendations. Overall the report found everything within reasonable perimeters.

Chair Borgeson requested clarification of the description of an unmanned plant. Mr. Hayes
stated unmanned means there is no permanent stationed employee at the plant, even if an
employee visits daily.

Chair Borgeson asked if this audit reviewed HEA's practice of billing a percentage of time to the
project, rather than billing by actual hours. He noted the hours billed on each timesheet are

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 3 of 6



exactly the same and the specific hours are not being tracked. Mr. Hayes reported the audit
information provided shows HEA is billing by hours. Mr. Ambrose stated hours are billed to the
project. The time spent on the project is not recorded by minutes, and is based on the
approximation of 24% of Mr. Ambrose's salary and 50% of Mr. Day's salary.

Chair Borgeson noted the allocation and tracking of time is necessary so the project has the
knowledge and a record of what time is required of management. Chair Borgeson hopes the
Budget Committee will instill HEA track their management time comparable to other
professionals who track and bill their time.

Mr. Hayes suggested utilizing a similar system used by AEA to require timesheets and hours on
a weekly basis and the production of a monthly report describing their project activities.

Mr. Thibert inquired as to the percentage of third-party contractors conducting maintenance in
the Lower 48. Mr. Hayes noted there is a wide variance by project as to what core staff is
maintained in-house and what is contracted by a third-party.

Chair Borgeson asked for examples of potential contractors for work at the Bradley Project. Mr.
Hayes indicated firms like HCMS and AES provide operation and maintenance services. No
quotes were received for comparison of the current O&M costs.

Mr. 1zzo asked what source was used for the benchmark data. Mr. Hayes noted the report
contains the five benchmarks applied and consists largely of U.S. facilities, both public and
private. Most of the data does not reflect that last two or three years' of operation.

Mr. Ambrose asked in Mr. Hayes' experience, if third-party contractors conducting maintenance
provide the service at cost or with a margin of profit. Mr. Hayes stated there is always a profit or
fee on top of the cost. Mr. Ambrose asked if Mr. Hayes understands HEA provides the
maintenance at the cost set by the Committee. Mr. Hayes agreed.

Chair Borgeson asked what risks may be increased by changing an operator. Mr. Hayes
explained the increase in risk is the lack of familiarity with the plant facility. One of the
recommendations is to accelerate the 5-year process of making the plant O&M manuals current.

Mr. Ambrose asked for clarification regarding who would be trained under the recommendation
for fire brigade training. Mr. Hayes clarified the contract or arrangement for a fire brigade would
be made with the City of Homer Fire Department.

Chair Borgeson requested recommendations on the continuity of succession management as
knowledgeable people retire or move on to other opportunities. Mr. Hayes believes having an
apprentice as one of the FTEs is important.

Ms. Fisher-Goad requested clarification be provided to AEA as soon as possible regarding the
automatic renewal timeline and next steps for renewal or non-renewal of the operator. Chair
Borgeson gave an assignment to Mr. Gibson to inform the Committee on making the decision
regarding the operator after HEA's five-year contract expires. Mr. Gibson will report at the next
meeting and recommends the Committee takes action before July 1st. Notice of termination by
either party shall be given two years in advance.

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Budget Committee - Budget to Actuals Update

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 4 of 6



Mr. Woolf informed Ms. Garner will present the update. He stated there was nothing unusual in
the report. Legal costs were over budget for justifiable reasons and the year-to-date number for
audit expenses shows over budget because the whole year's work has been completed
compared to the proportional number listed in the budget.

Ms. Garner provided the budget to actuals report. The O&M is under budget by $600,000 to-
date. The administration costs that are more than $20,000 over budget are explained in the
report.

Mr. Izzo requested clarification regarding where to locate the wheeling payments to HEA. Mr.
Wick does not believe wheeling payments are in the Bradley budget. Ms. Fisher-Goad believes
Chair Borgeson requested at the last meeting that AEA account for the payments to HEA
resulting from the implementation of the resolution. Ms. Fisher-Goad stated she emailed
members regarding the issue and has not received any responses. Ms. Fisher-Goad indicated
the staff time to provide this information would be outside the current Bradley management fee
and an additional fee to provide the service would be necessary.

Chair Borgeson stated this item will be on the agenda at the next meeting. He asked Mr.
Thibert if CEA is making the wheeling payments to HEA. Mr. Thibert indicated this is a good
item for discussion at the next meeting.

Chair Borgeson asked the Budget Committee to conduct a three-hour budget workshop for the
Budget Committee, O&D Committee, and the BPMC Committee. The workshop will be
combined with a BPMC meeting and was scheduled for March 4th, beginning at 8:30 a.m. Mr.
Ambrose requested an agenda be provided in advance. Mr. Woolf agreed.

10. OPERATORS REPORT

Mr. Owens provided the Committee with a written copy of the Operators Report. The unit two
outage for the nozzle rebuild was postponed due to the upcoming fish water debris removal
contract. The tentative reschedule date for the nozzle rebuild is May 23rd. Mr. Owens informed
a comprehensive post-earthquake inspection was completed on the dam and on the facility. No
notable damage was found.

Mr. Owens advised a fairly comprehensive budget will be presented to the O&D Committee at
their next meeting in February. He stated a foreman at Bradley has submitted his resignation
due to retirement and the discussion regarding apprentices at Bradley will be considered.

11. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Chair Borgeson assigned the capital project financing to the Budget Committee. Chair
Borgeson assigned Mr. Gibson the articulation of the process regarding the renewal of the
operator contract. Chair Borgeson assigned CEA to report back on the payments to HEA under
its agenda item at the next meeting.

12. MEMBERS COMMENTS

Ms. Fisher-Goad noted AEA sent out a report of AEA/Bradley Lake activities on January 22nd,
2016. She stated the Cook Inlet Aquiculture Association requested the use of the Martin River
borrow ponds for sockeye salmon broodstock. AEA is working with the Association to refine the
request before it can be presented to the Committee.

Mr. Ambrose expressed appreciation for the mitigation work conducted.

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 5 of 6



Chair Borgeson expressed appreciation to the presenters.

Mr. Thibert expressed appreciation for the Audit Report and Operator Report.
13. NEXT MEETING DATE - TBD

The next meeting date will occur March 4th after the budget workshop.

14. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business for the committee, the meeting adjourned at 12:03 p.m.

Attest:
Sara Fisher-
Alaska Energy Authority, Secretary

BPMC Minutes 1/29/16 Page 6 of 6






